Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 15 August 2019

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
7 August 2019

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 4)

4.

Fourth Quarter (Provisional Outturn) Financial, Procurement & Performance Review
2018/19 (Pages 5 - 64)

5.

Citizens Advice - Council Tax Protocol (Pages 65 - 78)

6.

To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

PART 2
7.

Homes England Housing Infrastructure Fund - Acceptance of Grant Award (Pages
79 - 90)
(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

8.

Review of Service Delivery Options for Housing Repairs (Pages 91 - 108)
(Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an
individual. )

9.

Supply and Installation of Kitchens - HRA Capital Programme 2019/20 & 2020/21 Contract Award (Pages 109 - 122)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

10.

Supporting the Council's legal duties under the Environmental Permitting
Regulations 2010 (Pages 123 - 126)
(Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. )

11.

Planning and Regeneration Staffing Structure (Pages 127 - 140)
(Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of The Executive
Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillor A Barrow
Councillor J Todd

Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair)
Councillor F Sloman

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
THE EXECUTIVE
Meeting:

Thursday, 20 June 2019 at 6.00 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens,
Buxton

Present:

Councillor A McKeown (Chair)
Councillors A Barrow, D Greenhalgh, F Sloman and J Todd
Councillors T Ashton and J Collins were also in attendance.

20/1

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)
There were no declarations made.

20/2

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the Executive held on 14 February 2019 be approved as
a correct record.

20/3

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES
(Agenda Item 4)
The Executive considered a report that sought to appoint councillors to
Outside Bodies.
Options considered:
Statutory guidance for authorities operating executive arrangements, state
that the Executive should make appointments to all those outside bodies
whose functions are executive functions. All other appointments should be
made by Council. Appendix A listed the organisations for which
representatives were appointed.
RESOLVED:

That councillors be appointed to the various outside bodies, as detailed in
Appendix A of the report.
20/4

PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2019/20 AND ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
(Agenda Item 5)
The purpose of this report was to:


Provide members with an opportunity to scrutinise the draft
3
Performance FrameworkPage
and associated
targets for 2019/20

The Executive
Thursday, 20 June 2019




Present the findings from the Annual Report and how these had
influenced the framework
Outline the suggested approach and timescale for the development of a
new 4-year Corporate Plan.

The report was presented to the Corporate Select Committee on 10 June
2019. A working group would meet to further consider individual
performance targets.
Options considered:
Members were asked to consider the proposed targets and to make amendments if
they consider that they were necessary.
RESOLVED:

That the Performance Framework 2019/20 and Annual Report 2018/19 be
approved, subject to the completion of the Corporate Plan process later in
2019.
The meeting concluded at 6.18 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 4

Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
15 August 2019
nd
TITLE:

Fourth Quarter (Provisional Outturn) Financial,
Procurement & Performance Review 2018/19

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS:

Claire Hazeldene - Finance
Vanessa Higgins - Performance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non-Specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A – 2018/19 – Fourth Quarter Financial Report
 Appendix B – 2018/19 – Fourth Quarter Procurement Report
 Appendix C – 2018/19 – Fourth Quarter Performance Report
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth
Quarter 2018/19”).

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that the Executive:





Note the Fourth Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and performance
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this
covering report
Approve the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue
Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10)
Approve the carry forward unspent revenue budget as described in
Appendix A (Paragraph 2.13)
Approve the carry forward unspent capital budget as set out in Appendix A
(Paragraph 7.6 and 8.4)

Page 5

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after
considering service activity up to the end of the Fourth Quarter (i.e. 31st March
2019).

3.2

Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3

The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject

Headline

Reference

Finance

The headlines for the fourth quarter are:
Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn
for 2018/19 is an underspend of £1,381,989.
Efficiency Programme
 The overall general fund efficiency target was of £581,000 for
2018/19. A small shortfall of £56,743 has been carried forward to
be achieved in 2019/20. The HRA 2018/19 efficiency target of
£245,000 has been achieved through the reduction in minimum
revenue provision when setting the MTFP.
Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account is in surplus (against budget) by
£1,409,779
Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2018/19 as
revised in February 2019 is £4.62 million. The outturn is £3.99
million which represents an underspend of £0.63 million, half of
which relates to revised vehicle procurement scheduling.
 The HRA Capital Programme for 2018/19 as revised in February
2019 is £4.07 million. The outturn is £3.38 million which
represents a £0.69 million underspend.
Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st March 2019 totalled £14.4 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2019 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is marginally
underspent by £57,298 with a £34,660 surplus on the HRA
Revenue Collection
 98.43% of council tax was collected by 31st March 2019,
compared to 98.35% for the same period last year.
 99.09% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 2019
compared with 98.74% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter 4 the value of sundry debt over 60 days old
was £184,465 which compares to £182,066 at 31st March 2018

Appendix A

Procurement

The headlines for the fourth quarter are:
 22 procurement activities were completed
 At the 31st March 2019, 64% of procurement activity undertaken
was on the forward plan and the Council paid 95% of its invoices
within 30 days

Appendix B

Page 6

Subject

Headline

Reference

Performance

The headlines for the fourth quarter are:
 61% of the key performance indicators met target, with 45%
better than target
 Of the 22 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, seven are
completed, one is awaiting a decision, and the remainder being
classified as ‘Green’; and
 The Council received 223 complaints, 294 comments and 167
compliments in the Fourth Quarter. Repeat complaints and
response times both on track

Appendix C

4.

How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the
subject of this report.

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

Detailed analysis is contained within the appendices

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
None

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality
and Diversity policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the
report.

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

6.7

External Consultation
None

Page 7

6.8

Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Various background working papers

Buxton Town Hall

Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191
Vanessa Higgins
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 8

APPENDIX A

2018/19
Fourth Quarter
(Provisional
Outturn)
Financial Review

1

Page 9

1.

Background and Introduction

1.1.

In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the
fourth (and final) such report for 2018/19.

1.2.

The report summarises overall financial performance for 2018/19 with particular
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific
considerations are as follows:


General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.



Pavilion Gardens (Section 3) – highlights the financial performance of this
key Council trading activity.



Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the performance of
the Council’s Joint Venture Company in providing waste collection and fleet
management services.



Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 5) – considers
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.



Housing Revenue Account (Section 6) – highlights the budgetary position in
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.



General Fund Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update on
progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.



HRA Capital Programme (Section 8 ) – provides an update on progress
against the Council’s HRA capital plans.



Treasury Management (Section 9) – sets out the key statistics in terms of
investments and borrowings.



Revenue Collection (Section 10) – considers progress-to-date in collecting
the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

2

Page 10

2.

General Fund Revenue Account

2.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff)

Provisional
Outturn
2018/19

2018/19
Budget

Variance

(Contribution
to) / Use of
Earmarked
Reserves

Alliance Leadership Team
Audit
ICT
Human Resources
Member Services
Property Services+
Benefits
Planning Applications
Building Control
Customer Services
Legal Services
Electoral Services
Licensing and Land Charges
Regeneration+
Communities and Cultural
Housing Strategy
Transformation
Community Safety and Enforcement
Finance Income & Procurement
Corporate Finance
Waste Collection
Street Scene
Leisure Services+
Horticulture
Environmental Health

£
538,470
94,980
585,740
72,480
196,190
427,280
134,480
(65,600)
35,840
506,830
190,000
96,470
(336,520)
378,720
455,510
80,040
213,340
136,350
425,650
925,790
2,570,200
175,090
419,360
198,180
421,600

£
513,934
95,396
537,472
60,649
160,498
409,261
6,852
(17,001)
26,130
453,464
244,801
30,454
(314,836)
427,378
450,233
(70,904)
215,393
93,621
412,004
768,697
2,422,456
186,205
522,388
189,848
392,775

£
(24,536)
416
(48,268)
(11,831)
(35,692)
(18,019)
(127,628)
48,599
(9,710)
(53,366)
54,801
(66,016)
21,684
48,658
(5,277)
(150,944)
2,053
(42,729)
(13,646)
(157,093)
(147,744)
11,115
103,028
(8,332)
(28,825)

147
17,224
(15,695)
(33,880)
6,596
(158,459)
(12,104)
60
(5,438)
2,030
-

Net Total of Services

8,876,470

8,217,168

(659,302)

(199,520)

Net Interest

1,550,770
10,427,240

1,493,472
9,710,640

(57,298)
(716,600)

Funding - external
Funding - reserves contribution to/(from)

(8,616,150)
(1,811,090)

(9,487,609)
(1,605,020)

(871,459)
206,070

-

(1,381,989)

(1,381,989)

Projected (Surplus)/Deficit

£

* In previous quarters Staff costs were budgeted and recorded in Finance & Procurement. They were considered a
corporate resource to be the main source of savings realised by the Authority’s Efficiency and Rationalisation
Programme, However to show the true use of resources by individual services it is necessary to include the actual staff
costs incurred. Therefore the Quarter Four provisional outturn position includes the actual staff costs (and matching
budgets) at the service level.
** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account
+The Visitor Services function has now been split between three service areas: ‘Car Parks’ with Property Services, ‘Tourism and
Markets’ within Regeneration, and the ‘client responsibility for the Pavilion Gardens’ within Leisure Services

3

Page 11

2.2.

A revenue budget of £10,427,240 was set for 2018/19. The table above shows
how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.3.

The projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2018/19 is
£9,045,251. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £1,381,989.

2.4.

There are two service areas with a projected significant overspend (>£50,000):

2.5.



Legal Services (£54,801 overspend); the overspend resulted equally from
external professional services required in relation to three contracts, Leisure
Management, Facilities Management and Pavilion Gardens.



Leisure Services (£103,028 overspend); Income streams at Pavilion
Gardens were impacted by the delayed re-opening of the Octagon,
contributing to a projected £207,269 overspend against the budget. This
operating deficit - net of savings in the facilities property based budgets - gives
rise to the trading deficit reported in Section 3. Changes to the Leisure Centre
management contract part way through the year generated savings of some
£86,000. While £16,000 of this related to a repairs budget, the majority arose
from credits that had accrued against the old contract in regard to pension
contributions.

There are six services with a projected significant underspend:


Benefits (£127,628 underspend) - Where overpaid benefits can not be
reclaimed from on-going payments the recipients are invoiced individually.
The income is credited to the service in the year that the invoice is raised
irrespective of when the cash is actually received. In acknowledgement that
not all invoices will be paid the service is charged a bad debts provision. In
2018/19 the amount of historic overpayments identified and pursued by raising
invoices were some £106,000 above expectations. This was partially offset by
a £37,000 bad debts provision. The remaining £59,000 underspend was
predominantly as a result of grant funding, received in year to support
administrative initiatives, exceeding the actual direct cost impact on the
service. As reported at 2.7 below £15,695 of this funding has been moved
into an earmarked reserve for use in future years.



Customer Services (£53,366 underspend) - Small savings across a number
of budget heads generated around £19,000 of the underspend. Savings of
£13,000 were made against both the postage and photocopier budget heads.
The underspend was further boosted by the receipt of £9,000 from Derbyshire
County Council to fund the Borough’s administration of their gold card service.



Electoral Services (£66,016 underspend) - Each year the service budgets to
underspend so that a contribution of £40,000 can be made into a reserve
earmarked to spread the cost of the Borough’s elections over the term of a
council. Also this year additional savings were made against the service
budget as a result of grants received to support the implementation of
Individual Electoral Registration.

4

Page 12



Housing Strategy (£150,944 underspend) - The housing needs function of
this service area can benefit from third party funding of varying but sometimes
substantial amounts to be targeted at homelessness initiatives in the Borough.
The unpredictable nature of these grants and the extended timeframe of the
various initiatives often require the use of earmarked reserves to match
funding to costs. As reported below (section 2.7) 2018/19 has seen some
£158,000 excess funding received in the year being placed in earmarked
reserves.



Corporate Finance (£157,093 underspend) - £13,000 of the Corporate
Finance underspend is subject to a carry forward request (section 2.13)
relating to risk management work around the safeguarding of the Buxton
spring water source. This work, which was signed off by the Risk Management
Group, was due to be carried out in 2018 funded by a corporate risk
management budget. The work will now take place in 2019.
Following a technical consultation by the Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG), the methodology for calculating
compensation due to local authorities for Small Business Rates Relief
threshold changes has been refined. This has generated a windfall for the
Council of £41,889 which been credited to corporate finance as it relates to
previous years.
MHCLG announced as part of the local government finance settlement 2019
to 2020 that authorities would benefit from increased growth in business rates
income which has generated a surplus in the government’s business rates
levy account since the introduction of the retention scheme; £35,743 has been
received by the Council in 2018/-19 from this distribution.
A net £70,000 underspend is reported against the corporate contract hire
budget reflecting an in-year change in the way the Authority’s operational fleet
requirements are satisfied. As part of the business plan for Alliance
Environmental Services the practice of hiring sweepers and refuse vehicles
etc. has been replaced by purchase and in-house maintenance. This in effect
moved the financing element from contract hire to within the overall costs of
treasury management (borrowing costs)



Waste Collection (£147,744 underspend) - Section 4.6 shows how the
Authority’s trading relationship with Alliance Environmental Services
generated £58,000 more surplus than originally anticipated. Trade Waste
activities contributed £114,000 to the underspend through a combination of
higher demand and reduced costs. Income from recycling credits however
was £25,000 below expectations.

2.6.

The £57,298 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 9.

2.7.

The level of funding anticipated for the year is £665,389 above that budgeted due
to the following:

5

Page 13

External Funding (£871,459):
Business Rates Retention (£871,459)
 As a member of the Derbyshire 100% Business Rates pilot in 2018/19, the
contribution payable for the strategic growth fund (as part of the pilot terms) is
lower compared to the levy payable under the previous 50% pooling
arrangement upon which the budget was set; an additional £407,027 retention
has been achieved.
 S31 grants for business rates are £464,432 greater than the budget because
the Council is entitled to a greater share of S31 grants under the pilot (50%
instead of 40%) where the budget prudently assumed no change.
Use of Reserves £206,070:


The original budget for 2018/19 assumed the use of £1,804,540 in
contingency and £6,550 in earmarked reserves.



The outturn reported in table 2.1 assumes that the £1,804,540 drawdown of
contingency reserves included in the 2018/19 budget was used. In practice
however owing to the general fund surplus (of £1,381,989) generated in the
year the actual use of these reserves was only £422,551.



The £206,070 variance in reserve usage reported in table 2.1 reflects that
instead of using the £6,550 in earmarked reserves the Borough was actually
able to contribute £199,520 in to them.

Earmarked:


Electoral Services £33,880 contribution: there is a budgeted annual
contribution of £40,000 in to a reserve earmarked to spread the cost of the
Borough’s elections over the term of a Council. In 2018/19 this has been offset
by the crediting to the service of the £6,120 balance of funding received in
2017/18 to support the implementation of individual electoral registration.



Corporate Finance £12,104 contribution: the Authority occasionally suffers a
charge arising from its historical liability with Municipal Mutual Insurance. The
Authority’s Insurance Reserve is used to fund these irregular charges which in
2018/19 totalled £5,350.
During 2018/19 the Borough, along with all similar sized councils, received a
Government grant of £17,484 towards Local Authority costs associated with
exiting the European Union. These monies have been set to one side to meet
such future liabilities should they arise.



Property Services £17,224 use: the cost of resolving urgent health and safety
works at the Council’s properties is to be covered out of an earmarked reserve.



Communities & Culture £6,596 use; Monies reserved to fund activities around
community engagement in regard to Glossop Hall were applied in year.

6

Page 14



Benefits £15,695 contribution; New Burdens (NB) grant, received in the year to
support the impact on the Council of Government initiatives to reform the
Benefits system, that was not applied in year has been earmarked for future
use.



Housing Strategy £158,459 contribution: Each year a grant is received from
Derbyshire County Council, in relation to council tax earned on second homes,
that is used to address homelessness issues in the Borough. At the end of
2018/19, £70,000 remained unspent and has been placed in reserve for future
use. In addition some £85,000 of Flexible Homeless Support Grant received inyear has been set aside to support homelessness initiatives that will run into
future years.



Leisure Services £5,438 contribution: a number of grants and contributions
received in year are being placed into reserve to be applied to specific sport
and leisure related projects in the future.



Horticulture £2,030 use; Works on Parks and Open Spaces are part funded
each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies previously received from
Developers as part of their planning obligations.

General Fund Revenue Reserves:
2.8.

The provisional outturn for the year on the General Fund Revenue Account was a
£1,381,989 surplus.

2.9.

The surplus generated is calculated inclusive of the £1,804,540 use of general
reserves budgeted for 2018/19. Therefore, the Authority’s contingency reserves
have decreased overall by £422,551.

2.10. The Authority’s calculated minimum for its contingency reserve is £1,300,000. A
review of the Authority’s reserves has been performed to identify areas where
earmarking for future projects was considered prudent while maintaining a
satisfactory level for contingency. As a result the following moves into earmarked
reserves are proposed;


£816,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to fund capital expenditure
and reduce the overall cost of borrowing. It is anticipated that this will be
applied to acquiring vehicles and equipment for Alliance Environmental
Services Limited.



£100,000 added to the reserve earmarked to support the Borough’s Efficiency
and Rationalisation programme bringing it to £200,000.



£12,000 set aside to provide funds to support the ‘Keep Britain Tidy’ campaign.



£40,000 put into a reserve established to fund a review of the condition of the
Council’s buildings to inform capital expenditure requirements.

2.11. In addition a balance of £19,000 has been returned to Contingency following
closure of two earmarked reserves, staff conference and WW1 commemorations,
7

Page 15

where spend was or could be covered from existing budgets.
2.12. The effect of these changes results in a balance on general fund reserves as at
31st March 2019 of £2.005 million – which is £0.7 million above minimum
contingency. The current Medium Term Financial Plan, expects to contribute a
net £0.48million to general contingency reserves over the next four years 2019/20
– 2022/23. This is however dependent on the realisation of the Efficiency Plan.
Carry Forward Request:
2.13. There is a request from Corporate Finance to carry forward £13,000 of unused
budget in the General Fund Account, relating to risk management work around the
safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source. This work, which was signed off
by the Risk Management Group, was due to be carried out in 2018 funded by a
corporate risk management budget. The work will now take place in 2019.
It is recommended that this request be approved.

8

Page 16

3.

Pavilion Gardens

3.1.

This section of the report details the financial performance of the trading activity at
Pavilion Gardens. The Pavilion Gardens trading results are included in the
General Fund Revenue Account.

3.2.

In the Medium Term Financial Plan, part of the 2016/17 growth item (which was
included to reflect the closure of the Octagon) was reversed in the 2018/19 budget
amounting to £56,000. The 2018/19 budget was also reduced by £70,000 due to
removal of the marquee, making the budget a net cost of £182,460.

3.3.

As from 1st February, the Pavilion Gardens transferred to Parkwood Leisure which has been reflected in the overspend of £204,610. The main reason for the
overspend is the delayed reopening of the Octagon and the impact on income
levels.

3.4.

The table below summarises the financial performance of the six separate trading
activities – Pavilion Café, Coffee Area, Tourist Information Centre (TIC) & Retail
Area, Events, Outside Areas and Functions – in the Pavilion Garden.

Description
Pavilion
Café

Coffee
Area

Income
Expenditure

(461,210) (120,900)
579,040
245,320

Net Cost /
(Contribution)

117,830

124,420

Description
Pavilion
Café
Income
Expenditure
Net Cost /
(Contribution)

3.5.

Coffee
Area

(534,960) (143,600)
627,760
261,220
92,800

117,620

Outturn 2018/19
TIC &
Events
Retail
(144,680) (112,720)
230,480 142,170
85,800

Outside

(39,970)
57,100

29,450

17,130

Outturn 2017/18
TIC &
Events
Retail

Outside

(155,140) (197,540)
218,850 227,620
63,710

Function

(115,040)
127,480
12,440

Outturn

Variance

(994,520)
1,381,590

(1,250,220)
1,432,680

255,700
(51,090)

387,070

182,460

204,610

Function Outturn

(41,800)
46,120

(134,120)
143,630

(1,207,160)
1,525,200

4,320

9,510

318,040

30,080

2018/19
Budget

2017/18
Budget

Variance

(1,454,030) 246,870
1,747,730 (222,530)
293,700

The following should be noted:







Pavilion Café – Trading activity derives from the Café during the normal
opening hours of the business between 9.30am and 5pm (and later during the
Festival Season in July and August)
Coffee Area – Trading Activity driven from the Coffee Bar.
Tourist Information Centre (TIC) and Retail Area – Trading activity driven from
the Retail area (including gallery Rental and artists’ commission) and the
Tourist Information Centre)
Events – Trading activity driven from room hire bookings in-house events and
fairs
Outside - Trading activity driven from the miniature train and Lakeside Kiosk.
Functions –Trading activity in respect of food and drink driven from private
9

Page 17

24,340

bookings.

10

Page 18

4.

Alliance Environmental Services

4.1.

Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision to
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders:
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. This section of the
report considers the financial performance of the company and contribution to the
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2018/19.

4.2.

Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. This followed the end of the
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services. Phase 2 began on 1st
July 2018 to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
and fleet management services to the Alliance as a whole.
Alliance Environmental Service’s financial performance

4.3.

The AES business plan for all services delivered to both Councils included an
anticipated operating profit of £111,830. The draft outturn provided at 31st March
2019 shows that a profit of £109,160 was achieved during the year; showing a
small shortfall of £2,670 against the budget. The outturn includes both the
crystallised risk items payable by the Councils (£363,340); and the
reimbursement of the planned efficiency target payable by (AES £169,730).
2018-19

Budget

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative & Other
Expenses
(Profit)/ Loss

Draft Outturn

Variance

£
(6,495,840)
5,789,890
(705,950)

£
(6,073,480)
5,417,080
(656,400)

£
422,360
(372,810)
49,550

594,120

547,240

(46,880)

(111,830)

(109,160)

2,670

Impact on the Council’s budgets
4.4.

This table shows in more detail the outturn on the AES contract included in the
General Fund Revenue Account and HRA:

11

Page 19

General
Fund
£

2018-19

HRA
£

Total
£

Contract budget
Transfer of contract hire budget
Net budget

2,713,280
122,420
2,835,700

75,950
75,950

2,789,230
122,420
2,911,650

Management fee (incl. vehicle premium)
Crystallised in-year risk items
Allocation of AES efficiency

2,817,480
74,940
(91,460)

76,770
17,390
(1,690)

2,894,250
92,330
(93,150)

Net management fee payable

2,800,960

92,470

2,893,430

(23,120)

(3,410)

(26,530)

2,777,840

89,060

2,866,900

(57,860)

13,110

(44,750)

Allocation of Joint Operation Profit
Net total payable
Variance to Budget

4.5.

In addition to the service budgets for the management fee (contract budget), it
has been recognised that savings on former contract hire vehicle budgets have
been achieved as a direct result of the change in vehicle provision upon
cessation of the SFS contract (the Council’s former provider of contract hire
vehicles). Therefore these savings of £122,420 have been transferred to support
the vehicle premium and crystallised fleet risk items.

4.6.

The management fee payable includes an additional £92,420 (the vehicle
premium) to recognise the additional costs associated with temporary hire of
waste vehicles pending the completion of a procurement exercise. The contract
states that any profits realised in excess of the budget would be used to offset
this amount. This did not occur in 2018/19 as there was no excess profit
achieved.

4.7.

The AES Business Plan also includes forecast expenditure recognised initially as
‘risk items’ which may or may not crystallise into actual costs/ payments or may
be absorbed into the existing management fee paid on account. The draft outturn
shows that £92,330 (£74,940 general fund, £17,390 HRA) of these risk items
have crystallised, the majority of which relate to fleet costs. This is £72,560 less
than the original forecast risk items (£68,590 general fund, £3,970 HRA) largely
related to additional People’s Pension costs which did not occur.

4.8.

The Council’s share of the total AES efficiency achieved is £93,150 (£91,460
general fund, £1,690 HRA). This is repayable to the Council and is allocated
against the management fee costs.

4.9.

Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to
separate group accounts being reported. The profit is therefore apportioned
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of
original budgeted resources from each department. £26,530 (£23,120 general
fund, £3,410 HRA) is offset against the management fee costs.
12

Page 20

Efficiencies
4.10. The total 2018/19 efficiency target relating to AES services is £242,850. This is
made up of the £169,370 allocated to AES and £73,480 to be achieved from the
retained budgets of both Councils. This has been achieved during the year.
Pensions
4.11. AES is continuing the process of confirming admitted body status in the
Derbyshire Pension Fund (DPF). The employees transferred to AES have been
‘pooled’ with the remaining Council employees in the High Peak portion of the
DPF. This effectively removes pension risk from the company, whilst at the same
time offering greater budget certainty and putting the Council in the same risk
position that it would have been if services were delivered in-house.

13

Page 21

5.

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

5.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2018/19.

5.2.

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2018) included
a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
targeting savings of £2.1 million. This was required to balance the forecast budget
deficit position of £1.7m and also the carry forward of unachieved efficiencies from
2016/17 of £0.4m.

5.3.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has the effect of both reducing
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy has
been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to
ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out
in the Corporate Plan.

5.4.

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy has five areas of focus:






Major Procurements - a fundamental review of a number of large services
where long-term contract commitments have ended. The contract
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services
across the alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands. The individual projects will
focus on Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and
Facilities Management
Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising
the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in order to allow for the
necessary capital investment
Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic growth
based upon the established Local Plan.
Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on
income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income
Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas
of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-statutory
services

5.5.

The 2018/19 budget provided for the achievement of £581,000 of such savings in
year – with a significant focus on income generation and savings arising out of
major procurements, particularly the waste collection Alliance Environmental
Services joint arrangement.

5.6.

At the end of Quarter Four, £492,357 has been taken against the overall efficiency
programme. A further £31,900 of growth related savings were also delivered at
budget-setting time, arising out of New Homes Bonus funding forecasts.

5.7.

This leaves a £56,743 shortfall against target due to slippage in the profile of
savings. The efficiency shortfall is being partially offset by one-off vacancy savings
in the establishment as well as other corporate in year savings. Whilst this plugs
the in-year savings gap; it does not necessarily provide for on-going budget
14

Page 22

savings. Consequently, any shortfall in efficiency savings at year-end will need to
be rolled forward to be achieved in future years.
5.8.

An exercise was undertaken as part of the 2019/20 budget setting process to
review and re-profile the Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan – which anticipated a
small shortfall against target in 2018/19.

5.9.

The Authority carries a reserve of £100,000 earmarked to support the Efficiency
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency
programme, such as redundancy costs (this has now been increased to £200,000
– see 2.10). It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in 2018/19 so it
remains intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the
Efficiency Programme.

15

Page 23

6.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

6.1.

This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the
operation of the Council’s housing stock.

6.2.

The 2018/19 Housing Revenue Account budget as updated and approved by the
Executive on 9th August 2018 was set at £147,140.

6.3.

Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account for 2018/19 is
£13,704,312 with provisional outturn income of £14,966,951. This represents a
surplus for the year of £1,262,639 (i.e. £1,409,779 below budget).
Housing Revenue Account

INCOME
Dwellings Rents
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc
Sub-total income
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance
Supervision & Management
Rents, rates, taxes Etc
Savings Realised
Other Operating Expenditure
Depreciation & Impairment
Interest & Debt Management
Contribution to Capital
Sub-total expenditure
Surplus(-)/Deficit

2018-19
Revised
Budget

2018-19
Provisional
Outturn

2018-19
Variance

£

£

£

(14,230,620)
(617,730)
(14,848,350)

(14,270,918)
(696,033)
(14,966,951)

(40,298)
(78,303)
(118,601)

4,404,400
3,034,670
105,260
69,730
712,110
2,099,030
2,904,200
1,666,090
14,995,490

4,622,464
2,420,685
141,072
579,592
2,062,396
2,869,548
1,008,555
13,704,312

218,064
(613,985)
35,812
(69,730)
(132,518)
(36,634)
(34,652)
(657,535)
(1,291,178)

147,140

(1,262,639)

(1,409,779)

6.4.

The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account”
(HRA). By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget
throughout the financial year. The Council comfortably maintained a credit balance
on the Housing Revenue Account in 2018/19. The surplus balance will be
transferred to reserves within the Housing Revenue Account.

6.5.

There is just one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:


Repairs and Maintenance (£218,064) – There are a number of small variances
contributing to this overspend, however the two most significant relate to:
- the costs associated to component repairs including doors and windows
which was much higher than expected creating an overspend of £180,000;
16

Page 24

6.6.

increases in other general material spend resulting in a £130,000
overspend; and
offsetting this, trade waste spend was lower than expecting providing an
underspend of £70,000.

There are five significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.


Income (118,601) – improvements to void turnarounds and increased income
from service charges have been responsible for this positive variance.



Supervision and Management (£613,985) – there are numerous underspends
across a large number of budget areas contributing to this underspend
however, a large proportion of this variance relates to savings in salary costs
from vacancies and staff turnover.



Savings Realised (£69,730) – A number of administrative savings have been
realised ahead of the HRA Financial Improvement Plan.



Other Operating Expenditure (£132,518) - this variance is due to the lower
than expected contribution needed to the bad debts reserve.



Contribution to Capital (£657,535) – This underspend relates to delays in
commencement and completion of a number of capital schemes and is
reflective of the changes to the capital programme detailed in Section 8
below.

17

Page 25

7

General Fund Capital Programme

7.1

The General Fund Capital Programme approved by members in February 2019
was set at £4,617,670

7.2

The 2018/19 provisional outturn at 31st March 2019 is summarised in the table
below, with further detail provided at Annex A
General Fund Capital Outturn 2018/19
Service

6.7.

Revised
Budget

Outturn

Housing
Housing Standards
Property Services
Fleet Management
Leisure Services
Regeneration
Horticulture

£
178,000
383,370
2,545,680
1,007,410
122,560
370,650
10,000
4,617,670

£
140,408
285,382
2,464,171
709,418
122,256
254,232
13,430
3,989,297

£
(37,592)
(97,988)
(81,509)
(297,992)
(304)
(116,418)
3,430
(628,373)

External Contributions
Earmarked Reserves
Capital Receipts
Borrowing

383,370
1,086,400
633,000
2,514,900

285,382
831,674
246,081
2,626,161

(97,988)
(254,726)
(386,919)
111,261

4,617,670

3,989,297

(628,373)

Variance

The Council incurred capital expenditure of £3,989,297 during the year against a
revised budget of £4,617,670 - this represents an underspend of £628,373. The
underspend reflects the net impact of Capital Programme projects which are either
behind schedule or have progressed quicker than expected with the most
significant variances being:


Housing Standards (£97,988 underspend) – this variance resulted from less
spending in the year than forecast against disabled facilities and landlord
accreditation grants. The under spend has been carried forward to 2019/20 to
cover grant applications approved and committed at the end of March



Property Services (£81,509 underspend) – The variance is made up of an
overspend of £593,770 on the refurbishment works to the Octagon, Pavilion
Gardens (the final contract sum is subject to on-going negotiations). This is
offset by underspends of £678,679 against a number of in-progress property
projects where expenditure was below or higher than forecast. These
variances will be carried forward into 2019/20



Fleet Management Vehicle & Plant Acquisitions (£297,992 underspend) following transfer of the waste collection service to Alliance Environmental
18

Page 26

Services (AES), new fleet management arrangements have been agreed.
Existing contract hire agreements have been terminated and vehicles have
been directly purchased. The underspend reflects the revised timing of
acquisitions of further fleet vehicles which will now take place in 2019/20


Regeneration (£116,418 under spend) - expenditure on the Buxton Crescent
Hotel & Spa project was £88,613 lower than forecast; the project continues to
progress and the unused budget has been carried forward to support ongoing
commitments. Also, there was an underspend of £27,805 against the release
of Heritage Regeneration Grants; the scheme has now ceased.

7.5

Consequently, capital funding applied to the 2018/19 Capital Programme is lower
than forecast, reflecting the incidence and timing of capital spend.

7.6

As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to increase /
decrease the capital budgets for 2019/20 as shown in the table below:
Capital Programme 'Carry Forwards' (2018/19 to 2019/20)
Service

Housing
Property
Fleet Management
Leisure Services
Regeneration
Horticulture

Variance

Carry Forward
to 2019/20
Over/(Under)
Spend

Over/ (Under)
spend
Completed
Projects

£

£

£

(135,580)
(81,509)
(297,992)
(304)
(116,418)
3,430
(628,373)

19

Page 27

(97,988)
(678,679)
(297,992)
(88,613)
3,430
(1,159,842)

(37,592)
597,170
(304)
(27,805)
531,469

8

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

8.1

This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s HRA capital
spending.

8.2

The HRA Capital Programme approved in February 2019 was set at £4,072.480.

8.3

The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme
provisional outturn at 31st March 2019. Further detail on a scheme by scheme
basis is contained in Annex B.
Scheme

Asset Management Works

2018-19
Revised
Budget

2018-19
Provisional
Outturn

2018-19
Variance

£

£

£

3,469,000

2,797,543

(671,457)

Repairs Team Capital Works

295,000

287,868

(7,132)

Commissioning Fees

100,000

97,066

(2,934)

Vehicle Purchasing

208,480

197,204

(11,276)

4,072,480

3,379,681

(692,799)

2,099,030

2,062,396

(36,634)

307,360

308,730

1,370

1,666,090

1,008,555

(657,535)

4,072,480

3,379,681

(692,799)

Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve
Capital Receipts Applied
HRA Contribution

8.4

The Council incurred capital expenditure of £3,379,681 during the year against a
revised budget of £4,072,480; this represents an under spend of £692,799. Of this
underspend, a request to carry forward £50,000 is made to continue the works
associated with a large disabled adaptation following delays in planning consent.
The remaining underspend reflects the net impact of the Capital Programme
projects which are either behind schedule or have progressed quicker than
expected with the most significant variances being:


Roofing Works (£295,687) – the majority of this underspend relates to the
Queens Court Roof replacement (£250,000) which has been rolled forward into
the 2019/20 capital programme following a delay in procurement.



Electrical Works (£166,405) – The project to electrically test approximately 800
properties each year did not begin until mid year, following an extensive
procurement exercise. Although more than half have been completed, the
delayed start means that the remainder will not be completed until 2019/20.



Health & Safety Works (£150,000) – This budget refers to three properties with
potential structural issues. The project is in the early stages with the focus
being on gathering information from surveys in order to provide information to
inform the extent of the works needed and future costs. The project has
20

Page 28

therefore been rolled forward into 2019/20.
8.5

The HRA capital programme outturn is lower than anticipated and this is reflected
in the reduced funding direct from the HRA and associated capital reserves. Apart
from the HRA contribution, the largest variance relates to the major repairs
reserve which is lower than expected reflecting the impact of changes in asset
valuations.

21

Page 29

9

Treasury Management

9.1

This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high
level treasury management summary. The Audit and Regulatory Committee
receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.
Investments

9.2

Cash Investments held on the 31st March 2019 totalled £14.4 million. The
average level of funds available for investment up to the end of the year totalled
£19.8million and £145,410 interest was earned.

9.3

The Council has budgeted to receive £139,940 in investment income in 2018/19.
The budget was set with the potential for one Bank of England base rate rise of
0.25% during 2018/19. This occurred on 2nd August 2018 which was slightly
earlier than the original forecast of November 2018 therefore a surplus interest
income of £5,470 was achieved.
Borrowing

9.4

Outstanding borrowing at 31st March 2019 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,694,500 and £1,891,470 respectively
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2018/19. This was based on
existing external debt and new external debt to fund the borrowing requirements
arising from the 2017/18 and 2018/19 general fund capital programmes plus the
refinancing of a portion of maturing debt in December 2018.

9.5

None of this ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity occurred during the year,
therefore budget is forecast to be £86,490 underspent overall: £51,830 to the
general fund; and £34,660 to the HRA owing to improved investment income
(netted off the borrowing costs) from HRA reserves available for investment and
the improved average investment rate.

22

Page 30

10

Revenue Collection

10.1

The collection rate outturn for Quarter 4 2018/19 was as follows:


Council Tax – 98.43% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2019,
compared to 98.35% for the same period last year.



Business Rates – 99.09% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March
2019, compared with 98.74% for the same period last year.



Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of
Quarter 4 was £184,465 which compares with £182,066 at 31st March 2018.
One significant overdue invoice was subsequently paid in early April 2019.

23

Page 31

Annex A
General Fund Capital Programme Update - 31st March 2019

Scheme

Housing & Housing Standards
Affordable Housing Project
Disabled Facilities Grants
Landlord Accreditation

2018/19
Approved
Budget
Feb 2019

Outturn
2018/19

Variance

Carry
Forward to
2019/20

(Over)/Under
Spend

£

£

£

£

£

178,000
309,640
73,730
561,370

140,408
279,382
6,000
425,790

37,592
30,258
67,730
135,580

30,258
67,730
97,988

37,592
37,592

2,545,680
2,545,680

2,464,171
2,464,171

81,509
81,509

678,679
678,679

(597,170)
(597,170)

1,007,410
1,007,410

709,418
709,418

297,992
297,992

297,992
297,992

-

122,560
122,560

122,256
122,256

304
304

-

304
304

45,000
325,650
370,650

17,195
237,037
254,232

27,805
88,613
116,418

88,613
88,613

27,805
27,805

10,000
10,000

13,430
13,430

(3,430)
(3,430)

(3,430)
(3,430)

-

Total General Fund

4,617,670

3,989,297

628,373

1,159,842

(531,469)

Asset Management Programme

2,545,680

2,464,171

81,509

678,679

(597,170)

Property
Asset Management Programme
Fleet Management
Vehicles Plant & Equipment
Leisure Services
Gym Equipment Purchase

Regeneration
Heritage Grants
Buxton Crescent & Spa
Horticulture
Cemeteries/Parks

24

Page 32

Annex B
Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update - 31st March 2019

Scheme

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS:
Roofing & External Works
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Central Heating
Central Heating - One Offs
Electrical Works
Health & Safety Works
Aids & Adaptations
Unity Walk & Quarry Close Railing
Cross Street Structural
Commercial Heating Renewal (Marian)
Corbar Road Roofing Works
Communal Rewires
Major Voids (2)
Scooter Stores
Lightning Protection
Commercial Heating Renewal (Cromford Court)
Electrical Works (Marian)
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires
Void Kitchens
Void Bathrooms
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases

TOTAL SPEND

Approved
Budget
2018/19

18/19
Provisional
Outturn

18/19
Variance

C/fwd to
2019/20

Over /
(Under)
Spend

£

£

£

£

£

602,000
625,000
150,000
223,000
76,000
468,000

306,313
577,670
190,003
214,599
34,205
301,595

(295,687)

-

(295,687)

(47,330)

-

(47,330)

40,003

-

40,003

(8,401)

-

(8,401)

(41,795)

-

(41,795)

(166,405)

-

(166,405)

-

(100,000)
151,236

100,000
350,000

451,236

(100,000)
101,236

30,000

40,458

10,458

50,000
-

(50,000)

-

(50,000)

(19,920)

-

(19,920)

(21,236)

-

(21,236)

(11,562)

-

(11,562)

(8,327)

-

(8,327)

(9,915)

-

(9,915)
(16,651)

50,000
127,000
35,000
220,000
118,000
75,000

107,080
13,764
208,438
109,673
65,085

10,458

40,000

23,349

(16,651)

-

80,000

58,138

(21,862)

-

(21,862)

-

100,000
3,469,000

95,935
2,797,543

(4,065)
(671,457)

50,000

(4,065)
(621,457)

35,000

68,215

33,215

-

33,215

200,000

147,418

(52,582)

-

(52,582)

60,000

72,235

12,235

-

12,235

295,000

287,868

(7,132)

-

(7,132)

100,000

97,066

(2,934)

-

(2,934)

100,000

97,066

(2,934)

-

(2,934)

208,480

197,204

(11,276)

-

(11,276)

208,480

197,204

(11,276)

-

(11,276)

4,072,480

3,379,681

(692,799)

50,000

(642,799)

25

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B

2018/19
Fourth Quarter
Procurement
Review

Page 35

1.

Introduction

1.1

A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was
approved by Councillors in February 2017.

1.2

The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives. The key actions in in
the strategy included:







1.4

Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency &
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of
contracts.
Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of excellence
to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils
Revising Procurement Procedure Rules to support transparency, timeliness
of contract award and greater control – these have now been updated
Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as
appropriate
Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
Implementation of e-tendering
Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement
opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for
presentation during 2019.

Page 36

2.

Fourth Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1

The activity supported by the procurement function for the fourth quarter January
2019 to March 2019 is summarised below:
Fourth Quarter

High Value (>
£181,000)

Low Value(<
£181,000)

Total

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)

1
1

13
7

14
8

TOTAL

2

20

22

2.2

Annex A provides details of the 22 procurement exercises completed during
quarter four.

2.3

No cashable savings have been made as a result of specific procurement activity
during Quarter 4, this will continue to be monitored in 2019/20 and any savings
identified will be offset against the efficiency programme.

2.4

However, a review of historical overall expenditure against budget has taken
place to identify where budgets can be reduced due to ongoing / one-off
procurement activity. £185,000 has been realised against the Efficiency Plan in
2018/19.

Page 37

3.

2019/20 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1

The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting
in 2019/20.
2019/20 Activity

High Value (>
£181,000)

Low Value(<
£181,000)

Total

HPBC Only
JOINT (HP/SM)

17
5

43
39

60
44

TOTAL

22

82

104

3.2

In addition to the above, there are 89 listed entries brought forward from previous
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).

3.3

Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for
delivery in 2019/20 includes:







CCTV Maintenance and Monitoring Arrangements
Construction Materials Supply
HRA Kitchen, Central Heating, Roofing programmes
Glossop Cemetery Extension
Glossop Halls Refurbishment Works
Insurance

Page 38

4.

Procurement Performance

4.1

This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2

Performance for the fourth quarter is highlighted below:
Performance Indicator
% of Alliance Procurement
Activity on Forward Plan
Annual contract spend as %
of gross expenditure budget
% of invoices paid within 30
days

Target

Performance at
31st March 2019

72%

64%

78%

83%

96%

95%

Performance Indicators – targets not achieved
4.3

Regular service review meetings are held to ensure planned activity is captured
and monitored on the plan. New processes have been implemented within the
Creditors function to enhance the workflows to maximise on efficient working
practices.

Page 39

ANNEX A
Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC
Contract name

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

HPBC Leisure
Centre Services
Management
and Operation

HPBC - Provision of Leisure
Services at Buxton, Glossop
and New Mills.

Recurring

Access to
Private Rented
Sector Project
(HPBC)

Securing accommodation in
the private rented sector for
vulnerable and
homelessness clients

Recurring

Bench Road
Play Area
Improvement
Project

Refurbish play area at Bench
Road and provide fitness
equipment in line with
Councils sport and physical
activity strategy

One Off

Disabled
Adaptation Ground Floor
Extension
Sherwood Road
- Buxton
Pavilion
Gardens Car
Park Lighting
Improvements

Disabled Adaptation to HRA
property

One Off

Lighting improvements to
Car Park at Pavilion Gardens

One Off

Painting of
internal
communal areas
at Hartington
Gardens Buxton

Painting of communal area
at Hartington Gardens

One Off

Swimming Pool
Re grouting
works Buxton
and New Mills

Under water grouting works
to Buxton and New Mills
pools

One Off

Gladstone
Street Flats
Remedial Works

Replacement of defective
cavity tray with new cavity
tray to rear elevation and
associated wither proofing
works

One Off

Water in Buxton
Supplementary
Planning
Document

SPD identified under Risk
Management project

One Off

Service Area

Service
Commissioning

Procedure

Parkwood
Leisure Ltd

5

Tender

Adullam
Homes
Housing

2

Kompan Ltd

1

Framework

Assets

Tender

Assets

Assets

Assets

Planning

Page 40

Term /
Duration
(years)

OJEU

Service
Commissioning

Assets

Award
Detail

Total
Contract
Value
(inc
extension
s)
1,063,020

162,000

90,000

Broadoak
Property
Services Ltd

1

Single
Source

HEC
Contracting
Ltd

1

Framework

Bell Group
Ltd

1

Single
Source

Barnet Pool
Maintenanc
e Ltd

1

Quote

Premier
Brickwork
(MC) Ltd

1

Wood
Environment
&
Infrastructur
e Solutions
UK

1

To be
supplied via
existing
contract

71,450

57,533

32,000

24,440

15,341

12,480

Contract name

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Alma Square
Communal
Boiler
Replacement Design / PM
Consultancy

Design and Project Mgmt for
replacement of Communal
Boilers at Alma Square

One Off

Garden Repair
works
43 Fairy Bank
Crescent

Garden Repair works to
ensure garden is safe for
tenant use

One Off

Fairfield
Gateway
Professional
Advice (Golf
Course
Architect)
Carpet and
Flooring for
emergency
accommodation

Specialist Architectural
Services to support Fairfield
Gateway Improvements
project

One Off

Carpet and flooring
installation at Marion Court x
5 Flats and Highfield House
x 3 flats to be used for
emergency accommodation

One Off

IT software to support HRA
business planning

Recurring

HRA Business
Plan Model

Service Area

Assets

Housing

Procedure

Framework

Quote

Award
Detail

Term /
Duration
(years)

Morgan
Lambert Ltd

1

Decorwright

1

Total
Contract
Value
(inc
extension
s)
9,250

7,450

Regeneration

Quote

Housing

IT

Single
Source

STRI Ltd
(Jonathan
Tucker)

1

Ardmair
Flooring

1

Abovo
Business
Services Ltd

1

6,470

4,000

3,500

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT

Contract name

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award
Detail

Term /
Duratio
n
(years)

Total
Contract
Value

Vehicles
Outright
Purchase
(Waste RCVs) SMDC / HPBC

Fleet Provision across
Alliance for AES

One off

Operational
Services Fleet

Framework

Dennis
Eagle Ltd
(HPBC 2,248,453)
(SMDC 1,264,382)

1

3,512,835

Purchase of
PACCAR
Vehicles

Purchase of 2 x 16T Refuse
Collection Vehicles and 1 x
7.5T Tipper

One off

Operational
Services Fleet

Single Source

PACCAR

1

178,000

Digital Customer
Portal

Customer Self serve portal

Recurring

OD&T

Framework

IEG4 Ltd OneVu

1

98,026

Committee
Management
System

Committee Management
Software for Agendas and
Minutes

Recurring

OD&T

Framework

Modern
Mindset

2

40,040

Page 41

Contract name

Brief contract description

Recurring
or One Off

Service Area

Procedure

Award
Detail

Term /
Duratio
n
(years)

Total
Contract
Value

Communications
Consultancy Celebrating the
Alliance

External Communications
Consultancy services

One off

OD&T

Single Source

Northern
Design
Collective
Ltd

1

30,000

Play Area
improvements
Simmondley and
Leek (Pickwood)
Jetting and
Drainage
Services (Adhoc
SMDC HPBC
Private Housing
and HPBC
Housing)

play area improvements

One off

Operational
Services -

Framework

Wicksteed
Leisure Ltd

1

12,274

Drainage and Jetting works

Recurring

Operational
services DLO

Tender

1

11,800

Regulatory
Legislation
Software Riams System

Software to support
Regulatory services for one
stop shop to access,
Legislation, notices and
policies. Also includes wider
services Planning,
Enforcement, Health and
Safety

Recurring

Regulatory
Services

Single Source

Drainage
Consultant
Ltd
Eden Point
Three
Acres Lane
Cheadle
Hulme
Cheshire
SK8 6RL
RIAMS

3

4,500

Page 42

Page 43

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: April 2018 to March 2019 (Q4)

High Peak Q4 Summary
The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April 2018 to March 2019 in relation to
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and
compliments.
Performance Overview
There are 131 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak. The chart below shows the results for the
year and reveals a 5% dip on last year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

Page 44

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the revised 2018-2019
Corporate Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects.
Off Track
100%

100%

80%

80%

60%

61%

60%

36%

40%
20%
Target Met

Off Track

45%

40%
3%

0%

In danger of going off Track

N/A

On Track
37%
18%

20%
0%
Better

Weaker

No Change

Not yet started / decision
awaited
Complete / Closed

Customer Feedback Overview
The number of complaints received during 2018/19 has fallen from 308 to 223 and repeat complaints stand at only 1%. The Council responded
to 97% of complaints within 10 days. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and the repeat issues.

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work

HP Aim 1: March Results 2018/19
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 1 : Trends March
2018/19
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%

Target Met

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 45

The Council failed to meet the Benefit processing targets for new claims and changes of circumstance. Following the introduction of Universal
Credit, there has been a reduction in the number of new claims which has affected our ability to significantly reduce the average annual
processing times. Households in temporary accommodation were also above the targeted level due to the effects of the homelessness
reduction act. The majority of High Peak’s other off track areas centre on new PIs linked to the Sports and Physical Activity Strategy.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of 2018/19 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 Accuracy of benefits processing
 level of external funding awarded for sport and physical activity
 homeless cases resolved

Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Continue to influence the provision of accessible health and
social care services through the Council’s Scrutiny work
programme

Page 46

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit
processing
Complete and implement a Housing Management and
Revenue Plan

Status

Commentary – March
Community Select Committee 3rd October. North Derbyshire
CCG made a presentation around the Care Closer to Home
Programme, as well as issues relating to access to mental health
beds following the closure of Spencer ward- further information
was requested around access to the functional beds at Stepping
Hill and Walton which was circulated in writing to members of
the committee prior to the meeting on 28th November.
Community Select Committee 6th Feb 2019. Sport and Physical
Activity Strategy was presented.
Report received and sent to AMT for approval for completion of
this action – May 2019 Meeting.
The HRA business plan has been updated and presented as part
of the Budget/MTFP report. The financial position is sustainable
over the 30 years based upon updated financial information,
including the results of the 100% stock condition surveys.
Investment options will be reviewed post election. Action
Completed.

Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements of the
new Homelessness Reduction Act

Action Completed.

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve
improved health and value for money outcomes

Meetings have been ongoing with the new contractor and
exiting contractor in recent weeks for High Peak. Relevant
members from the Leisure Project Board (Assets, Finance, and
Service Commissioning) met with Parkwood on 25.03.19 to
agree a way forward in regards to outstanding R & M issues and
compilation of compliance documentation. Our Solicitors remain
in ongoing dialogue with Parkwood’s solicitors to finalise
contract documentation aiming to be signed off on 29.4.19

Priority Action
Review and improve our relationships with Strategic Partners

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the
agreed recommendations

Status

Commentary – March
Action Completed. AMT have approved the report including the
partnership assessment tool responses. A presentation will now
be made to Managers Forum to complete the list and roll out to
service managers.
The CCTV project is approaching the final stages.
The next recommendations from the consultants have been
received. Notice has been given with effect from 01/07/2019.
Carelink training will be arranged for specific staff.

Page 47

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

HP Aim 2: March Results 2018/19
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 2: Trends March 2018/19
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Target Met

Off Track

N/A

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 48

Only two of High Peak’s ‘off track’ measures under Aim Two related to the Council’s housing stock. The Council fell behind target for the
completion of PEP appraisals, reportable / lost time accidents, planned procurement activity, invoice payment and SOCITM’s website quality
rating. The unavailable measures at High Peak relate to repairs appointments data, which cannot be accessed from the system currently and
are tabled for deletion from the Framework in 2019/20.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of 2018/19 the following PIs outstripped their target:







employee accidents
Facebook followers
on-contract spend
council tax and business rates collected
repeat complaints
press release take-up

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme

Page 49

Provide advice and support for residents
affected by the rollout of Universal Credit
across High Peak in 2018 in order to help
ensure a smooth transition to the new
system
Continue to embed good information
management practices through the
ASSURED framework

Develop and implement a plan to identify
new and innovative ways of generating
income

Status

Commentary – March
The Digital Strategy is currently under review.
E billing will commence following year end.
The environmental reporting app was looked at as part of the CGI review. This will
be included in the new digital programme going forward, the work will be
prioritized.
Phase 1 has been completed and is now business as usual.
Phase 2 Universal credit roll out (rents). Staff resource has been seconded to rents
(as part of a fixed term placement).
The Assured framework is regularly publicised via Keeping You Informed and staff
are encouraged to report data breaches. The GDPR action plan is monitored
through the Information Governance Group.
A number of training sessions have taken place to help key staff comply with GDPR,
with further sessions planned for staff requiring in depth training. The online
training package has been completed and is being rolled out to all staff on a team
by team basis from Q1 2019-20.
Information Asset Registers are complete and have being reviewed by audit.
Protective Marking briefing sessions are taking place with teams as required.
Our approach to Data Protection Impact Assessments has been reviewed following
training and has been integrated into procurement and project management
processes.
A target has been included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy
2017/18 – 20/21. Updates for various streams:
Commercial properties - Project now closed as business as usual, the finalized
report is being implemented. A delegated report is to be written for rental on the
community unit.
Fees and charges- Next review for 2019/20 budget setting/MTFP. Cash up against
efficiency target to be undertaken during 2018/19.
Advertising/Sponsorship -The current status being reviewed and a formal project
board is being established. A new policy is to be written and adopted.

Priority Action
Refresh and implement the Asset
Management Plan, including a review of
public estate, and ensure adequate
facilities management arrangements are
in place

Status

Commentary – March
Facilities Management: An agreement to extend has been made with DCC with 3
months notice. We have received a quote from Kier regarding the condition surveys
proposal.
Corporate and other relevant policies have been fed through to CIPFA for the Asset
Management Plan.
Team members have met with CIPFA regarding the compliance audit and the report
has been received. A meeting took place at the beginning of February with CIPFA to
review the current status. A system demonstration has been arranged for the end
of April with the supplier.

Page 50

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 3: Trends March
2018/19

HP Aim 3: March Results 2018/19
100%
80%
60%
40%
20%
0%
Target Met

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 51

The Council performed well against Aim Three with only 4 PIs off track at High Peak. Footfall at the Pavilion Gardens complex fell short of
target (the Octagon Lounge delayed opening will have had an impact), as did its trip advisor satisfaction ratings. High Peak also failed to hit the
satisfaction targets from planning agents but hit all of the planning processing targets.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of 2018/19 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:
 major, minor and other planning applications processed on time
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal
 low % of empty town centre shops

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Market test the commercial operation of
the Pavilion Gardens, including a review
of the Tourist Information Centre and
Tourism Service
Together with partners work for the
delivery of the Buxton Crescent
development
Support the development of Glossop Halls

Page 52
Support the development of Torr Vale Mill

Undertake detailed process benchmarking
with high performing / low cost councils
with a view to identifying value for money
improvements for Planning application
processing

Status

Commentary – March
Action Completed. Formal transfer to Parkwood Leisure effective 01/02/2019.
Buxton Crescent Heritage Trust will deliver Visitor Information services on behalf of
the Council at The Pump Room in Buxton.
The final draft of the Visitor Economy Strategy and the Destination Management
Action Plan has been published including an abridged version for consultation.
The report was taken to the Economy and Growth committee on 22nd November.
The draft CHAR report is being considered by the project team for later reporting.
The Board is being established and a meeting was due to be held in March.
Work on the Town hall roof has commenced. Project management support is being
provided, and the project is on track. Rental opportunities are being looked at. A
clock specialist was due on site in April.
A report on the Victoria Hall feasibility has been discussed and the
recommendations supported by Corporate Select. The Council's Executive and the
Victoria Arts Centre Group held a joint meeting in October to agree the way
forward, the report has been agreed. A community group meeting was held early
April.
Action Closed.
DCC and HPBC met with the mill owner and agreement has been reached on the
wording of the Memorandum of Understanding between the owner and the Torr
Vale Mill Building Preservation Trust. The final draft of the document has now been
signed off by Historic England and issued to DCC’s Cabinet and HPBC’s Executive.
This will establish the partnership arrangements moving forward to secure funding
for a further feasibility study of the site.
Report received and sent to AMT for approval for completion of this action – May
2019 Meeting.

Priority Action
Implement the accelerated housing
delivery programme

Page 53

Implement the accelerated business
growth and employment programme

Status

Commentary – March
Discussions with all relevant land owners and developers as well as DCC and Homes
England are on-going:
Glossop package: Plans for Glossop package are being prepared, await response
from DCC and Sport England regarding the in principle agreement. Discussions have
been held with DCC officers to discuss potential opportunities for joint working. A
submission has been made for project management support to consider the
benefits of rationalisation across HPBC and DCC. Report due for February cycle.
Buxton package: Homes England has visited the sites and is pleased with the
progress. They have also met with Hogshaw and Waterswallows landowners and
developers to carry out viability appraisals. The funding agreement documents
have been received and forwarded to legal. Officers continue to meet regularly
with the developers of the site regarding land assembly. Draft designs for the
preferred position of the roundabout have been issued, costs are being reported
and a golf architect has been appointed. Memorandum of Understanding's are in
place with Hogshaw developers and DCC, the MOU with Waterswallows developers
is being finalised.
Granby Road- Legal team are liaising with the property team and external legal
consultants to take the contract forward. Revised HoT's have been issued to the
developer and we await their feedback.
Wrens Nest: A meeting was held in March with an external company to take
forward the discussions around options for the Council to consider supporting
delivery of a scheme at Wrens Nest. The company have set out a number of options
for the Council that would help with delivery of the scheme and have presented the
market analysis and other clarifications sought by the Council in respect of each of
the options.
Goyt Bridge: S106 expires March 2019. A report will be written regarding the
transfer of land, the project will then be closed.
Chapel Masterplan: Chapel-en-le-Frith Parish Council has discussed with BE Group
potential conditions that could be included with a conditional land sale agreement
relating to part of the allotment site. Any such conditions would be designed to
ensure that development constraints can be addressed and the agreement would
be terminable if works were not started (or completed) within a certain timeframe.
BE Group has been instructed to liaise with Bevan Brittan on the inclusion of
recommended conditions within a land sale agreement.
The Parish Council is briefing potential development partners on the process for
submission of best and final offers.

Priority Action

Status

Commentary – March
Buxton Station: Planning applications for the health hub and McCarthy & Stone
development have been approved. Project managers have been appointed via the
OPE process. DCHS is awaiting the outcome of the bid to STP programme.

Page 54

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

HP Aim 4: March Results 2018/19
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

HP Aim 4 : Trends March 2018/19
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

Target Met

Off Track

Better

Weaker

No Change

Page 55

Aim Four is the Council’s strongest area in terms of performance. The recycling rates are estimates only at this stage and won’t be confirmed
until later in the year but at present are 1.5% below target but an improvement on 2017/18. High Peak also fell short of its community clean
ups and volunteer hours targets.

Celebrating Success:
At the end of 2018/19 30 PIs met or exceeded their target, a few of which are highlighted below:






fly-tipping incidents
ASB enforcements (fixed penalty notices, warnings and community protection notices)
missed bins
street cleanliness standards
residual waste (estimate)

Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action
Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the
transfer of services to Alliance
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint
venture company, to deliver waste,
streets and ground maintenance services
on behalf of the Council in order to
achieve improved performance and value
for money outcomes.
Establish a developer open space
contributions plan

Page 56

Commence the preparatory work needed
to facilitate the expansion of Glossop
Cemetery in 2019/20

Status

Commentary – March
Awaiting confirmation of phase 3 go live date in order for the consultation process
to commence.

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy have been completed and forms
part of a wider Developer Contributions SPD (Supplementary Planning Document).
The intention is to contract this work out to a consultant and the draft specification
is now being developed. The tender will be advertised in January 2019 with a view
to an appointment being made in February. Following consultation, the SPD should
be adopted by the end of 2019.
The design is well underway, Environmental Agency comments have been received
and a plan of action has been referred back to them for approval. Drainage is
required for the whole site rather than the original and we are working on various
drainage matters.

Page 57

Page 58

Areas for Improvement: 2018/19 Outturn
Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

18 days

25.64 days

Time taken to process
change of circumstances

7 days

9.83 days

The early part of each year is challenging for
benefits with year end closedown and other
pressures affecting performance. Usually we have
been able to claw this back across the year,
however the challenges of UC roll outs and
moving to the shared service have affected this
year. UC has meant less new claims for HB again
affecting the ability to make up for a slow start
and closedowns. We have also seen an increase in
changes as a result. Benefits performance is a key
area for improvement in 2019/20 and we are
revising our structure and processes to support
this.

Number of households in
temporary accommodation

15

19

b) 100%

a) 59

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Aim 1: Fit for purpose
housing stock that meets
the needs of tenants

Assistant Chief
Executive

High Peak
Time taken to process new
housing benefit claims

Page 59
a)Number of RTB
transactions (applications)
& b)% completed within
statutory timescales (RTB2)

Aim 1: Fit for purpose
housing stock that meets
the needs of tenants

Head of Legal and
Elections

b) 98.3%

The Homeless Reduction Act has extended the
persons to whom we have a duty and this has
impacted upon the levels of temporary
accommodation required.
One application out of 59 was over the statutory
timescales due to delays following lack of proof of
two previous tenancies.

Page 60

Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

5

1

The team was short on resources during 2018-19
following an instance of long term illness and the
departure of the principal officer in December.
The remaining officers involved had no
experience of delivering projects of this nature;
the target has proven to be too ambitious and has
therefore been reviewed, implementing a gradual
increase over the next 3 years.

NEW: Number of new
volunteering programmes
created in priority areas

3

0

We are still in the infancy of delivering
programmes in priority areas, existing targets
have proven to be too ambitious .Requested that
this measure is made contextual to give the team
time to re-focus their efforts in the priority areas
where we have commenced work, leading to
targets being reviewed for 2020-21.

NEW: Number of
participants on the High
Peak Walking for Health
Programme

3500

3400

The year end result is estimated as not all data
has been received for quarter 4. Results for Q1-3
were 2628.

4

1

The team was short on resources during 2018-19
following an instance of long term illness and the
departure of the principal officer in December.
The target has therefore proven to be too
ambitious for this year.

12 days

13.29 days

This PI is off target as predicted. The target of 12
days is challenging and would have been achieved
if the Service Area had been fully staffed at the
start of the year.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

NEW: Number of new
sports participation
programmes created in
priority areas

Aim 1: Provision of high
quality leisure facilities

Head of Service
Commissioning

NEW: Number of voluntary
clubs/organisations
supported with funding
applications
Average time from request
to repair (DLO)

Aim 2: More effective use
of Council assets

Head of Direct
Services

Page 61

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% & Number of council
owned business units
occupied

Aim 2: More effective use
of Council assets

Head of Assets

89.6%

86%(25/29)

% Rent loss due to vacant
stock

Aim 2: Easily available
services provided right
first time

Assistant Chief
Executive

0.86%

1.15%

Current Rent loss due to vacant stock £193,841.15
£137,504.35 of this figure is for properties on hold
(Marian Ct, Alma Square, Church View)
£36,393.39 of this figure is for Padfield Main Road
and Torr Top Street

Website Quality: Socitm
Better Connected
assessment

Aim 2: Easily available
services provided right
first time

Head of OD &
Transformation

4 stars

3 stars

The next assessment is not due until August 2019

Sickness absence per FTE

Aim 2: High performing
and motivated workforce

Head of OD &
Transformation

9 days

10.62 days

Ave days sickness per FTE: Short term 3.67 days.
Ave days sickness per FTE: Long term 6.95 days.
Year to date there have been 34 cases of long
term sickness that amount to 1632 FTE days. 5 of
these cases were ongoing at the end of March
and are being managed in line with the long term
sickness procedure.

Value of sundry debt over
60 days

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Head of Finance

5%
reduction

The void properties at Fairfield Place have
affected the result-there is no demand for retail
units in that location at present

£184,464.62 The year end result has been affected by one
overdue invoice raised in November 2018 for
1.3%
£30,211.00 payable by DCC in relation to a
increase
community grant. The payment is imminent but
the delay is due to the Authority not providing
paperwork in time and is not the fault of DCC.

Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

% of invoices paid in line
with terms of contract

96%

95%

% of corporate efficiency
savings met

100% of
target

90%

Income variance to budget
GF

Net
Budget +/5%
variance

8.34%
additional
funding
income (Q3)

Expenditure variance to
budget HRA

Net
Budget +/5%
variance

6.59%
underspend
(Q3)

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)
The year end result has been affected by nonreplacement of a staff member and unforeseen
absences within the team. We are reviewing our
processes to maximise our efficiency and we
anticipate a reduction in invoices in the coming
year due to the outsourcing initiatives. We are
confident the targets for next year will be
achieved.

Page 62

The MTFP is balanced by means of the savings
detailed in the Efficiency and Rationalisation Plan,
which was approved in February 2017. These
savings were profiled over a 4 year period running
up to 2020/21, with an annual target set for each
year. Although slippage in the delivery of the
2018/19 savings has led to a shortfall of £56,740
in the year; the planned savings remain on track
to be delivered over the remaining life of the Plan.
The 2019/20 to 2022/23 MTFP, approved in
February 2019, provides more detail on the
progress achieved to date in the delivery of the
planned savings.
This data is not yet available from the outturn, so
Q3 data has been used in proxy.

Pavilion Gardens - footfall

Aim 3: Promote tourism

Head of Service
Commissioning

601k

547k

The Closure of the Octagon until October affected
footfall significantly during Q1-3.

Measure of Success (PI)

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Pavilion Gardens - Trip
Advisor ratings (% good /
excellent)

Agent satisfaction with the
Planning Service

Aim 3: High quality
development and building
control with an open for
business approach

Head of
Development
Services

% of planning enforcement
cases resolved in 13 weeks

Page 63

% of household waste sent
for reuse, recycling and
composting

Number of community
clean-up campaigns

Friends/Community
Groups- number of
volunteer hours

Aim 4: Effective recycling
and waste management

Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

93.75%

92.16%

1610 reviews have been submitted on trip advisor
with 977 reported as excellent and 507 as ‘very
good’. Pavilion Gardens is ranked 4th of 25 things
to do in Buxton.

80%

70%

A review of the team structure is to be completed
by July in order to ensure the correct level of
resources is applied to provide higher standards
of customer service / satisfaction.

90%

80.60%

Resource issues throughout the year have
affected the performance result, in light of which
a new staff member has recently been appointed
in a temporary post. The target of 90% was
challenging and a lower target has been
suggested for next year which will also align both
authorities.

50%

48.5%

Results for Quarter 4 are estimated as we are not
in receipt of any disposal tonnage data from DCC
nor have received March's recycling information
from AES.

80

63

There were only 2 fewer community clean-up
campaigns during 2018/19 compared to the
previous year. The target was ambitious at 80
clean-ups and whilst this was not achieved the
overall view is that Communities are still engaged
in carrying out clean ups.

750

676

Whilst this PI has not met its target there is an
improvement compared to the previous year.

Head of Service
Commissioning

Aim 4: Provision of high
quality public amenities,
clean streets and
environmental health

Head of Direct
Services

Aim 4: Provision of quality
parks and open spaces

Head of Direct
Services

Aim / Objective

Service Lead

Target
2018/19

Result
Mar 2019

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% of Procurement activity
on forward plan (Joint
Alliance measure)

Aim 2: Effective use of
financial and other
resources to ensure value
for money

Head of Finance

72%

64%

A number of reactive and single source
appointments have affected the result for this
year. We will continue with the quarterly
management reviews in an attempt to minimise
this type of appointment.

% of Appraisals completed
across the workforce (Joint
Alliance measure)

Aim 2: High performing
and motivated workforce

Head of OD &
Transformation

100%

66%

Further to the management restructure early in
the year and a number of staffing moves a
number of PEPs have yet to be completed, plans
are in place to train new staff to complete PEP’s
and a programme is in place to ensure all staff
have an up to date PEP.

Number of RIDDOR
reportable / Lost Time
(7days) accidents (Joint
Alliance measure)

Aim 2: High performing
and motivated workforce

Assistant Chief
Executive

0

4

There are no trends or patterns to the accidents,
2 have been non-work related. However, we
have carried out a significant amount of staff
training and any issues will have been picked up
by the respective manager.

Measure of Success (PI)
Alliance Measures

Page 64

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q4 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.
https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q4_2018-19.pdf

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Report to The Executive
15 August 2019
TITLE:

Citizens Advice - Council Tax Protocol

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER:

Claire Hazeldene - Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED:

Non Specific

Appendices attached:
 Appendix A - Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to consider a recommendation by the Council
Tax Collection Working Group for the Council to adopt the Citizens Advice
Council Tax Protocol

2.

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Executive:




Adopt the Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol as attached at Appendix
A);
Note the issues that will need to be addressed as detailed in section 9.3 of
the report; and
Note the additional work that is to be undertaken by the Working Group as
set out in section 10 of the report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

At their meeting held on 15th July, the Council Tax Collection Working Group
considered a presentation from Derbyshire Districts Citizens Advice
requesting the Council to adopt the Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol
(attached at Appendix A).

Page 65

3.2

The protocol was developed in partnership with the Local Government
Association. The aim of the protocol is to offer practical steps aimed at
preventing people from getting into debt and to ensure that when local
authorities use enforcement agents that they act within the law.

3.3

The working group also received a report that highlighted the implications that
would arise from the Council adopting the protocol. The conclusion was that
there is nothing in the document that would result in major revisions in the
Council’s collection procedures and therefore the principles of the protocol
were supported.

3.4

There are however a number of issues that will need to be addressed after
committing to signing the document. It was agreed that the working group
would consider and resolve these issues at their next meeting.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

Agreeing the protocol will help the Council ensure that it provides excellent
levels of service to its customers

5.

Options and Analysis

5.1

It is recommended that Council adopts the protocol – the implications of this
are limited and it will be a positive statement about the Council’s commitment
to treating people fairly throughout the council tax recovery process

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2

Workforce
Some additional training particularly focusing on vulnerability and hardship will
be required to support the Council’s compliance with the protocol

6.3

Equality and Diversity / Equality Impact Assessment
The report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Diversity and
Equality Policy

6.4

Financial Considerations
None

6.5

Legal
None

6.6

Sustainability
None

Page 66

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
The CAB attended the working group to outline the case for the Council
adopting the protocol

6.8

Risk Assessment
Not applicable
ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location

Contact details

Buxton Town Hall

Claire Hazeldene
Head of Finance
claire.hazeldene@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 67

7.

Background & Introduction

7.1

The working group established to look at the collection of council tax first met
on the 1st April and established a work programme It was agreed that the first
priority would be for the group to consider the adoption of the Citizen Advice
Council Tax Protocol by the Council.

7.2

The group received a presentation by Derbyshire Districts’ Citizens Advice
Bureau who set out the background to the protocol and the issues that it could
be used in High Peak to address.

7.3

Following the presentation the working group agreed to make the
recommendation to the Executive for the Council to adopt the protocol. The
purpose of this report is for members of the Corporate Select Committee to
consider this recommendation.

8

Citizens Advice - Council Tax Protocol

8.1

The Citizens Advice Council Tax Protocol was developed in partnership with
the Local Government Association. The aim of the protocol is to offer practical
steps aimed at preventing people from getting into debt and to ensure that
when local authorities use enforcement agents that they act within the law.

8.2

The protocol, which is attached at Appendix A, asks that Councils:







8.3

Work with enforcement and advice agencies to help people pay their
council tax bills while accessing debt advice;
Ensure all communication with residents about Council Tax is clear;
Use the Standard Financial Statement when calculating repayment plans;
Offer flexible payment arrangements to residents;
Do not use enforcement agents where a resident receives Council Tax
Support;
Publish their policy on residents in vulnerable circumstances.

In summary, there are three areas of focus within the document:


Partnership: to foster more effective partnership working - This section
focuses on the Council, the CAB and enforcement agents working
together, meeting regularly – with all parties signing the protocol
document. It proposes a dedicated contact at the Council for the CAB to
discuss specific cases with as well as the provision of relevant training
particularly focusing on vulnerability and hardship.



Information: to improve the information supplied to Council Tax payers
about the billing process, how to get support and debt advice and to
promote engagement - This section focuses on ensuring that
communication issued by the Council and Enforcement Agents is clear
and understandable, as well as ensuring all relevant information is
available on the Council’s website. It recommends the option to provide

Page 68

flexible payment arrangements, signposting national debt advice services
on documentation, and promoting available discounts/reliefs/support
schemes.


Recovery: encouraging effective recovery, with early engagement and
referral to money advice organisations - This section focuses on how
Councils should ensure the recovery process is as effective as possible,
with enforcement charges and recovery policies reviewed regularly and
consideration given to those debtors on Council Tax support or awaiting a
claim for Universal Credit. It also recommends the Council establishes a
clear ‘vulnerability definition’. In addition, it recommends the Council
prioritise direct deductions from benefits/earnings as a mechanism for
recovery, provision for debt advisors to negotiate payment plans on behalf
of the debtor and clarity provided to the debtor as to which debts are being
paid off (where multiple liability orders exist).

9

Signing the Protocol - Implications for the Council

9.1

It is proven that where local authorities and debt advice agencies work closely
together, collection processes can be improved. An effective local relationship
leads to more early interventions to support people struggling with payments
and helps prevent further charges and reduces both collection costs and
demand on local public services.

9.2

Council officers have already met with the local CAB representatives and
discussed the protocol – the conclusion is that there is nothing in the
document that would result in major revisions in the Council’s collection
procedures and therefore the principles of the protocol are supported.

9.3

There are however a number of issues that will need to be address after
committing to signing the document. These are as follows:






Providing a dedicated contact at the Council for the CAB to discuss
specific cases;
Some additional training particularly focusing on vulnerability and hardship;
A review of communication issued by the Council and Enforcement Agents
to ensure that they are clear and understandable;
Ensuring that proper consideration is given to those debtors on Council
Tax support or awaiting a claim for Universal Credit;
Establishing a clear ‘vulnerability definition’.

10

Further Work

10.1

At the initial working group meeting, Councillors concluded that it was critical
that vulnerability is clearly defined. It was agreed that the Council’s current
enforcement agents attend the next meeting of the working group to outline
their approach to vulnerability which in turn will aid the Council in developing a
clear definition.

Page 69

10.2

In addition it was agreed that the working group would also review all of the
communications issued by the Council throughout the council tax recovery
process with a view to making recommendations for improvement.

Page 70

Council Tax
Protocol

Revised Collection of Council Tax Arrears Good Practice Protocol

Agreed by:
Citizens Advice, June 2017
Local Government Association, June 2017

Page 71

Council Tax Protocol
We agree to adopt this protocol in ………………………………………………..
as our public commitment to its principles of fairness, partnership
working and transparency in local authority debt collection:

Signature

Signature

....................................................

....................................................

Local authority representative

Local Citizens Advice / advice
agency representative

Signature

Signature

....................................................

....................................................

Enforcement agency
representative

External contractor
representative

(where relevant)1

(where relevant)1

Date:

Enforcement agents and external contactors may sign this protocol if they and the authority agree that it is
appropriate.
1

Page 72

1

Council Tax Protocol
Revised collection of council tax arrears good practice protocol
Council tax payers receive a better level of service when local authorities2,
enforcement agencies and debt advice agencies work closely together.
Early intervention and proactive contact with people struggling with bill
payments can help prevent them incurring further charges and help
alleviate stress. It can also potentially help reduce both collection costs
and calls on local public services, particularly mental health services.
This good practice protocol makes a number of suggestions on how local
partnerships can be strengthened and residents better supported.
Developed through partnership work between the national bodies
representing advice agencies, local government and enforcement
agencies throughout England and Wales, it builds upon the previous
protocol, which government recommended local authorities adopt in
their 2013 guidance. The protocol reflects best practice at local level and
is intended to facilitate regular liaison on practices and policy concerning
council tax debt collection. In setting down clear procedures and keeping
them regularly under review, all parties can ensure that cases of arrears
are dealt with appropriately whilst complaints are handled efficiently.
By signing the protocol and adopting the practices set out below, local
authorities, enforcement agencies and advice agencies can help
taxpayers pay their council tax bills while accessing debt advice when
needed.

2

Where we use the term ‘local authorities’, this should also be read to cover a local authority’s external
contractors, where the local authority has contracted out the administration of some or all of its council tax
collection process.

Page 73

2

Partnership
To foster more effective partnership working:
1. Local authorities, enforcement agencies and advice agencies should meet
regularly to discuss practical and policy issues with a recommendation to meet
quarterly at officer level and annually with elected members.
2. All parties should have dedicated contacts accessible on direct lines and
electronically so that issues can be taken up quickly.
3. All parties should promote mutual understanding by providing training
workshops, undertaking exchange visits and sharing good practice.
4. As local authorities are responsible for the overall collections process, they
should ensure all their staff, external contractors and enforcement agencies
receive the appropriate training, particularly on vulnerability and hardship.
5. Advice agencies, enforcement agencies and local authorities should work
together to develop a fair collection and enforcement policy, highlighting
examples of vulnerable people or those who find themselves in vulnerable
situations, and specifying clear procedures in dealing with them. Contractual
arrangements with enforcement agents should specify procedures for the local
authority to take back cases involving vulnerable people.
6. Local authorities should consider informal complaints as debtors may be afraid
to complain formally where enforcement agent activity is ongoing. Informal
complaints received from advice agencies can indicate problems worthy of
further investigation both locally by the local authority and by referral to
national bodies.

Page 74

3

Information
To improve the information supplied to council tax payers about the billing
process, how to get support and debt advice and to promote engagement:
1. All parties should work together to produce letters that clearly and consistently
explain how council tax bills have been calculated (including any Council Tax
Support award). Council tax bills should make clear council tax is a priority debt
and explain the consequences of not making payment by the date specified. As
far as possible within the constraints of systems, where a taxpayer has council
tax arrears, the letters should explain how the debt has been accumulated and
over which time period, the layout and language of bills and letters should be
easy to understand, with any letters including a contact phone number and
email address. All information should also be made available online in a clear
format.
2. Local authorities should consider reviewing payment arrangements and offer
more flexible options, including, subject to practicality, different payment dates
within the month, spreading payments over 12 months and, potentially,
different payment amounts to assist those on fluctuating incomes. This can
allow people to budget more effectively.
3. Local authorities and enforcement agents should publicise local and national
debt advice contact details on literature and notices. Advice agencies can help
by promoting the need for debtors to contact their local authority promptly in
order to agree payment plans. Parties can work together to ensure the tone of
letters is not intimidating but encouraging of engagement.
4. Local authorities should ensure that enforcement agencies have appropriate
information about the council tax debts they are recovering, so they can put
this in letters they send to debtors and answer any questions.
5. Local authorities should consider providing literature about concerns council
tax debtors may have about enforcement agents and enforcement. Information
could cover charges enforcement agencies are allowed to make by law, how to
complain about enforcement agent behaviour or check enforcement agent
certification and further help available from the local authority or advice
agencies.
6. All parties should work together to review and promote better engagement by
council taxpayers. This should include information on how bills can be reduced
through reliefs, exemptions and council tax support schemes, advising
taxpayers that they should contact the local authority if they experience
financial hardship and the consequences of allowing priority debts to
accumulate. Information and budgeting tools should be made available on local
authority and advice agency websites, via social media and at offices of relevant
agencies. This is an opportunity for joint campaign work.

Page 75

4

Recovery
If a council tax bill is not paid, then the local authority’s recovery process comes
into play. While local authorities strive to make early contact with a debtor, the
first point of engagement by a debtor often only occurs when an enforcement
agent visits the premises. Greater effort should be made at or before the
Tribunal Courts and Enforcement Act’s compliance stage, including debt and
money advice referrals and to assess whether vulnerability or hardship applies,
so as to avoid escalating a debt. Therefore:
1. Local authorities and enforcement agencies should work in partnership with
advice agencies on the content, language and layout of all documents,
produced by the local authority and agents acting on its behalf which are part
of the enforcement process. This should aim to ensure that the rights and
responsibilities of all parties, particularly those of the debtor, are clearly set out.
2. Enforcement agents should provide the debtor with a contact number and
email address should they wish to speak to the local authority.
3. Local authorities should keep all charges associated with recovery under
regular review to ensure they are reasonable and as clear and transparent as
possible and reflect actual costs incurred. Enforcement agents should only
make charges in accordance with council tax collection and enforcement
regulations, particularly the Tribunal Courts and Enforcement Act.
4. Local authorities should periodically review their corporate policy on debt and
recovery, particularly what level of debt (inclusive of liability order fees) should
have accrued before enforcement agent action, as enforcement will add
additional costs to a debt.
5. As part of their corporate policy on debt and recovery, local authorities should
have a process for dealing with cases that are identified as vulnerable, bearing
in mind that different local authorities may have different definitions of a
vulnerable person or household. Any local definition of vulnerability should be
developed in consultation with advice agencies and enforcement agencies and,
wherever possible, the local authority should aim to publish clear guidelines on
what constitutes vulnerability locally. Where a local authority’s vulnerability
criteria apply, In these cases, debts should be considered carefully before being
passed to enforcement agencies. Where enforcement agents or other parties
identify a vulnerable household, recovery action will be referred to the local
authority.
6. Local authorities should regularly review and publish their policies which cover
hardship, including how these relate to council tax arrears.

Page 76

5

7. Where a household is in receipt of Council Tax Support, the local authority
should consider matters carefully and determine whether to pass such cases to
enforcement agents, based on the individual circumstances of the case.
8. The debtor may have outstanding claims for Universal Credit, Council Tax
Support or other benefit(s) which are contributing to their arrears. Local
authorities can suspend recovery once it is established that a legitimate and
relevant claim is pending.
9. Local authorities and their enforcement agents should consider offering a 28
days hold or “breathing space” on enforcement action if debtors are seeking
debt advice from an accredited advice provider.
10. Procedures should exist for debt advisers to negotiate payments on behalf of
the taxpayer at any point in the process, including when the debt has been
passed to the enforcement agent. In some cases, the debtor may only contact
an advice agency following a visit from the enforcement agent.
11. Local authorities and enforcement agents should consider accepting and using
the Standard Financial Statement (SFS) or Common Financial Statement in
assessing ability to pay as long as this is consistent with securing value for
money for all council tax payers.
12. Each case should be examined on its merits and repayment arrangements
need to be affordable and sustainable, while ensuring that the debt is paid off
within a reasonable period. Where appropriate, local authorities should provide
the flexibility to spread repayments over more than a year, including beyond
the end of a financial year.
13. Local authorities should prioritise direct deduction from benefits or attachment
of earnings in preference to using enforcement agents. This avoids extra debts
being incurred by people who may already have substantial liabilities.
14. Clarity should be provided to the debtor and enforcement agency as to which
debts are being paid off, in what amounts and when, especially where a debtor
has multiple liability orders. Where appropriate, debts should be consolidated
before being sent to enforcement agents.
15. Local authorities should publish a clear procedure for people to report
complaints about all stages of recovery action. Local authorities will regularly
monitor and, subject to requirements of commercial confidentiality and the
Data Protection Act, publish the performance (including complaints) of those
recovering debts on their behalf and ensure that contractual and legal
arrangements are met.

Page 77

6

Free, confidential advice.
Whoever you are.
We help people overcome their problems and
campaign on big issues when their voices need
to be heard.
We value diversity, champion equality, and
challenge discrimination and harassment.
We’re here for everyone.

citizensadvice.org.uk
Published June 2017
Citizens Advice is an operating name of The National Association of Citizens Advice
Bureaux.
Registered charity number 279057.

Page 78

7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 103

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 127

This page is intentionally left blank

